Public Document Pack



Democratic Services White Cliffs Business Park Dover

Kent CT16 3PJ

Telephone: (01304) 821199 Fax: (01304) 872453

DX: 6312

Minicom: (01304) 820115 Website: www.dover.gov.uk e-mail: democraticservices

@dover.gov.uk

28 June 2016

Dear Councillor

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a meeting of the **STANDARDS COMMITTEE** will be held in the HMS Brave Room at these Offices on Wednesday 6 July 2016 at 10.00 am when the following business will be transacted.

Members of the public who require further information are asked to contact Kate Batty-Smith on (01304) 872305 or by e-mail at kate.batty-smith@dover.gov.uk.

Yours sincerely

Chief Executive

Standards Committee Membership:

B W Butcher (Chairman)

S S Chandler

M R Eddy

P J Hawkins

S M Le Chevalier (Vice-Chairman)

S C Manion

K Mills

AGENDA

1 **APOLOGIES**

To receive any apologies for absence.

2 APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

To note appointments of Substitute Members.

3 **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST** (Page 3)

To receive any declarations of interest from Members in respect of business to be transacted on the agenda.

4 **MINUTES** (Pages 4-5)

To confirm the attached Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 13 January 2016.

5 **COMPLAINTS REPORT** (Pages 6-14)

To consider the attached report of the Director of Governance.

Access to Meetings and Information

- Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Council, its Committees and Sub-Committees. You may remain present throughout them except during the consideration of exempt or confidential information.
- All meetings are held at the Council Offices, Whitfield unless otherwise indicated on the front page of the agenda. There is disabled access via the Council Chamber entrance and a disabled toilet is available in the foyer. In addition, there is a PA system and hearing loop within the Council Chamber.
- Agenda papers are published five clear working days before the meeting. Alternatively, a limited supply of agendas will be available at the meeting, free of charge, and all agendas, reports and minutes can be viewed and downloaded from our website www.dover.gov.uk. Minutes will be published on our website as soon as practicably possible after each meeting. All agenda papers and minutes are available for public inspection for a period of six years from the date of the meeting.
- If you require any further information about the contents of this agenda or your right to gain access to information held by the Council please contact Kate Batty-Smith, Democratic Support Officer, telephone: (01304) 872305 or email: kate.batty-smith@dover.gov.uk for details.

Large print copies of this agenda can be supplied on request.

Declarations of Interest

Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI)

Where a Member has a new or registered DPI in a matter under consideration they must disclose that they have an interest and, unless the Monitoring Officer has agreed in advance that the DPI is a 'Sensitive Interest', explain the nature of that interest at the meeting. The Member must withdraw from the meeting at the commencement of the consideration of any matter in which they have declared a DPI and must not participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter unless they have been granted a dispensation permitting them to do so. If during the consideration of any item a Member becomes aware that they have a DPI in the matter they should declare the interest immediately and, subject to any dispensations, withdraw from the meeting.

Other Significant Interest (OSI)

Where a Member is declaring an OSI they must also disclose the interest and explain the nature of the interest at the meeting. The Member must withdraw from the meeting at the commencement of the consideration of any matter in which they have declared a OSI and must not participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter unless they have been granted a dispensation to do so or the meeting is one at which members of the public are permitted to speak for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving evidence relating to the matter. In the latter case, the Member may only participate on the same basis as a member of the public and cannot participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter and must withdraw from the meeting in accordance with the Council's procedure rules.

Voluntary Announcement of Other Interests (VAOI)

Where a Member does not have either a DPI or OSI but is of the opinion that for transparency reasons alone s/he should make an announcement in respect of a matter under consideration, they can make a VAOI. A Member declaring a VAOI may still remain at the meeting and vote on the matter under consideration.

Note to the Code:

Situations in which a Member may wish to make a VAOI include membership of outside bodies that have made representations on agenda items; where a Member knows a person involved, but does not have a close association with that person; or where an item would affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc. but not his/her financial position. It should be emphasised that an effect on the financial position of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc OR an application made by a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc would both probably constitute either an OSI or in some cases a DPI.

Minutes of the meeting of the **STANDARDS COMMITTEE** held at the Council Offices, Whitfield on Wednesday, 13 January 2016 at 10.00 am.

Present:

Chairman: Councillor B W Butcher

Councillors: S S Chandler

P J Hawkins

Also Present: Mr B P S Dowley (Independent Person)

Officers: Director of Governance

Corporate Complaints and Resilience Officer

Democratic Support Officer

20 APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors S M Le Chevalier and K Mills.

21 APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

It was noted that there were no substitute members appointed.

22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

23 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 15 July 2016 were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

24 COMPLAINTS REPORT

The Committee received the report of the Director of Governance on formal complaints received by the Council for the period 1 July to 31 December 2015. The Director of Governance advised that the reference to him in the heading of the report was incorrect and should read 'Report of the Corporate Complaints and Resilience Officer'. The Corporate Complaints and Resilience Officer (CCRO) advised that 14 complaints had been investigated and three upheld during the reporting period.

In respect of Complaint No PSH020, Members were advised that, as the complete information had not been provided in response to the initial request, an apology had been issued and the amount of interest due had been reduced. In respect of Complaint No COM009, it was clarified that the temporary closure for the cycleway in Pencester Gardens had been issued under the wrong legislation. Officers had been made aware of the correct procedures to be followed in order to avoid this happening in the future. Complaint CTX166 had been referred to the Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) by the complainant. However, the LGO had taken the decision not to investigate the complaint as a fair and proportionate remedy had been offered by the Council. Complaint DEV168 had also been referred to the LGO, but had not been considered due to the fact that it was received out of time.

Referring to Appendix A of the report, the CCRO advised that the number of complaints was slightly down on the same period of the preceding year. It was clarified that the seven complaints about the Governance department had all related to the Director of Governance's decision to remove the Red Lion public house at Wingham from the Council's list of Assets of Community Value (ACV).

Councillor P J Hawkins advised that one of her neighbours had been very pleased with the speed at which a problem had been resolved by Officers. She added that complaints often stemmed from people not getting the result they wanted. Councillor S S Chandler clarified, in respect of Complaint No PSH020, that the Disabled Facilities Grant attracted interest and was payable on the death of the person who had received the grant. The Housing Improvement Grant was a charge on the property itself.

The meeting ended at 10.17 am.

DOVER DISTRICT COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE COMPLAINTS AND RESILIENCE OFFICER

STANDARDS COMMITTEE - 6 JULY 2016

COMPLAINTS REPORT FOR THE PERIOD 1 JANUARY TO 30 JUNE 2016

Recommendation

That the report be noted and the actions taken be endorsed.

Contact Officer: Sue Carr, extension 2322.

1. UPDATE OF COMPLAINTS RECEIVED BY THE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Reported below is an update of formal complaints investigated by the Corporate Services Team at stage two of the Council's complaints process for the period from 1 January 2016 to 30 June 2016. Eight complaints have been investigated and two of which were upheld. There may be issues raised through the complaints process where the Corporate Support Section provides a written explanation of Council policy and procedures but which do not require an investigation. These are not included within this report but are included within the figures in the tables at Appendices A and C

1.1 Complaint No. CTX177 - River (Closed)

This complaint related to the council tax increase specifically in relation to adult social care. The complainant was also unhappy that EK Services had automatically switched their account to e-billing and claimed that the Council should not be sharing their personal data with another company. The Corporate Complaints & Resilience Officer (CCRO) advised the complainant that the Council Tax Regulations had been amended in February 2016 to allow for local authorities responsible for adult social care to raise an additional 2% on their current council tax referendum thresholds. The CCRO apologised for the fact that their account had been altered without their permission but that it had been changed and a copy bill posted to them. The CCRO explained that the Local Government Acts 1972 and 2000 allow local authorities to discharge their functions jointly and that there had been no breach of data protection. The complaint was not upheld. The complainant referred the matter to the LGO as reported below at 2.8

1.2 Complaint No. DEV195 – Walmer (Closed)

A complaint was received in respect of planning enforcement. The complainant stated that ornamentation had been added to a development which did not agree with the plans which had been granted consent. The Planning Enforcement officer was of the opinion that the "finial type" ornamentation was visually acceptable and did not have a detrimental impact on the neighbouring residential amenities. The CCRO considered the matter but could find no evidence of maladministration. The Officer had given consideration to enforcement action and the CCRO could not question the merits of that decision. The complaint was not upheld.

1.3 Complaint No. DEV196 – Maxton, Elms Vale & Priory (Closed)

The complainant was unhappy with a decision taken by Planning Committee for residential development. They were of the opinion that the Council does not do enough to advertise planning applications and also questioned why Members went against an officer's decision. The CCRO explained that the Council had elected to advertise planning applications by way of site notice and this is in accordance with the Town & Country (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010. It has also been noted that a Department of Environment Circular from 1992 stated that site notices allow for information about a proposed development to be passed by word of mouth to a larger audience than might otherwise be possible. With regard to the decision taken by Members, the CCRO advised that Members of Planning Committee receive specific training and are mindful of planning policies. It was also noted that this is a democratic process and there will be occasions when Members go against an officer's recommendation. There was no evidence of maladministration and the complaint was not upheld.

1.4 Complaint No. DEV 197 – Sandwich (Closed)

This complaint related to differing pre-application advice provided in 2010 and 2015 and the way in which two planning applications were dealt with. The CCRO explained that since advice was provided in 2010 the National Planning Policy Guidance & Framework had been published which could explain the officers' different opinions however the CCRO cannot question the merits of the decisions. With regard to the two refusals the CCRO could find no evidence of maladministration as the officers had followed procedure and decisions are reviewed and signed off by different team leaders. The complaint was not upheld.

1.5 Complaint No. DEV198 – Eastry (Closed)

This complaint related to an application for prior approval for change of use. Prior approval seeks the Planning Authority's determination that a proposed development fits within the terms of permitted development but there are only certain criteria that the Planning Authority can comment on. If this type of application is not determined in a prescribed way within 56 days the applicant is at liberty to proceed. In this case, at the request of the planning officer, the applicant had submitted a draft Traffic Management Plan which was being considered by the Highway Authority's and the Planning Authority's legal teams. The applicant did not agree to an extension of time to resolve an acceptable form of wording for the legal agreement. Before the expiry of the 56 day period the Officer wrote to the applicant to advise that prior approval was required but the letter did not specifically state "prior approval is refused". Due to this technicality the change of use can be implemented under permitted development rights. The CCRO apologised to the complainant for this error but also explained that the legal agreement would only have been able to manage how the delivery vehicles to the building, accessed the site rather than all traffic using the highway. It is understood that the Parish Council is acquiring a speed indicating device which it is hoped will reduce the speed of the traffic. This complaint was upheld.

1.6 Complaint No. PSV042 – Castle (Closed)

This complaint related to the fact that an incorrect form had been sent which resulted in a delay of a service charge refund. Following enquiries made by the CCRO this was found to be the case and it was agreed that the form would be held on the

intranet so that officers always had access to the current version. The CCRO apologised to the complainant for this error. The complaint was upheld.

1.7 Complaint No. WST165 – Capel-le-Ferne (Closed)

The complainant alleged that the Council's contractor was failing to collect their waste and demanded a refund of council tax. The matter was investigated and it was found that there had been two reports of missed collections in 2015 and on both occasions the contractors had returned to collect the waste. There had been no further reports and the CCRO advised that unless the Council were aware of the problem the officers would be unable to respond. It also transpired that the complainant was failing to put the waste bins at the agreed collection point. The complainant agreed to put the bins in the pre-arranged location and the officers monitored the contractors until they were satisfied that the waste was being collected. The complaint was not upheld.

1.8 Complaint No. HND066 - Mill Hill (Closed)

The complainant was unhappy that an email from the Housing Options Manager referred to a "number of offers" made to them to enable them to transfer, but that this statement was incorrect. The CCRO reviewed the documentation and noted that four properties had been suggested, two of which were not in an area of their choice. The CCRO apologised for the wording used but ultimately two properties met their criteria and one offer was made in accordance with the Allocations Policy. The complaint was not upheld.

2. <u>COMPLAINT DECISIONS ISSUED BY THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN BETWEEN 1 JANUARY 2016 AND 30 JUNE 2016</u>

- 2.1 DEV191 This complaint related to decisions taken by the Council in relation to noise nuisance and planning enforcement. The Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) reviewed the actions taken by the Environmental Protection and Planning Enforcement Officers. With regard to the planning issues, the Ombudsman found no fault in the way the Council dealt with the alleged breach of planning control. The Council had considered all the evidence and decided not to take enforcement action. That is a decision the Council is entitled to reach and the Ombudsman cannot question whether the decision is right or wrong. With regard to the complaints of noise nuisance the Ombudsman found that site visits had taken place, recordings made and evidence considered. The Council had concluded that noise exists but not at a level at which action could be taken. The Ombudsman could find no fault with the way in which the matter had been dealt with. The decision was classed as "Not upheld: no maladministration".
- 2.2 HND064 This complaint relates to actions taken by the Housing Needs Section. An allegation that the complainant had been removed from the housing register, the way in which a housing application from a couple known to the complainant was dealt with and also the advice provided to people whose landlords threaten them with eviction. The Ombudsman found that the complainant had been removed from the housing register in 2011 as they had failed to respond to letters inviting them to reregister. The complainant stated that they had not received those letters but had been advised that they no longer had to re-register annually. The Council had already invited the complainant to re-apply to join the housing register and if the letter could be produced advising them that they did not need to re-apply they would be reinstated and their registration backdated to 2011. With regard to the allocation of a property to another couple, the complainant had not bid on the property so had not

suffered any injustice therefore the Ombudsman did not investigate that part of the complaint. With regard to advice given to people threatened with eviction, the complainant was not personally affected and therefore the Ombudsman would not investigate that part of the complaint. The Ombudsman closed the complaint and the decision was classed as "Closed after initial enquiries – no further action".

- 2.3 **ENV042** This complaint relates to allegations that the Council failed to properly investigate noise nuisance and also properly investigate and take appropriate enforcement action in relation to an intensification of use at a neighbouring commercial site. The Ombudsman found that the Council had investigated the noise complaints in accordance with its policy. The officers had repeatedly tried to witness the noise nuisance complained of but were satisfied that the noise they witnessed did not amount to a statutory nuisance. The Ombudsman could find no fault in the way the decision was made. With regard to the complaint of intensification of use at the site, officers visited, reviewed planning permissions and compared old photographs of the site with its current condition. There was no evidence of fault in the decision process. The decision is classed as "Not upheld: no maladministration".
- 2.4 **PKG056** The Ombudsman received a complaint that the Council should not have issued a penalty charge notice as they claimed that their vehicle was not obstructing a bus lane. The Ombudsman stated that they would not investigate the complaint as there is a right of appeal. The decision was classed as "Closed after initial enquiries out of jurisdiction".
- 2.5 **PSH022** The complainant claimed that they had lost business due to information passed from the Council to another Government agency. The Ombudsman resolved not to investigate the matter as the decision to remove residents from the complainant's property was not taken by the Council. The decision was classed as "Closed after initial enquiries no further action".
- 2.6 PKG055 A complaint was referred to the Ombudsman that the Council would not introduce a resident parking scheme which would allow only the residents of a culde-sac to park there. The Council had clearly told residents that it would not allow a separate scheme for a street which would give residents more favourable parking arrangements than those who lived in neighbouring streets. Consultation took place and four options were put forward but the Council had said that if the residents could not agree on one of those schemes then no scheme would be introduced at all for the cul-de-sac. When residents could not agree the Council followed through with this course of action. The Ombudsman found no fault in the Council's actions. The decision was classed as "Closed after initial enquiries no further action".
- 2.7 PKG059 This complaint related to debt recovery action in relation to the issue of a penalty charge notice. The complainant advised the Ombudsman that they wrote to the Council disputing the charge and received no further correspondence. They assumed that the matter had been resolved until enforcement agents acting for the Council visited their home to collect the debt. The Ombudsman advised that the registered keeper may make a late witness statement after the Court has issued the warrant and that, in this instance, this was the correct course of action. The decision was classed as "Closed after initial enquiries out of jurisdiction".
- 2.8 **CTX177** The complainant claimed that the Council should not share their personal data with a company set up between several Councils for administering council tax. The Council had advised that the law allowed this and the Ombudsman stated that if the complainant disagreed they could complain to the Information Commissioner. The complainant also said that he had been sent a council tax bill by email without

their authorisation. The Council had apologised and sent a printed copy. The Ombudsman was satisfied that this remedied the complaint but did not consider that the alleged error would warrant investigation. The decision was classed as "Closed after initial enquiries – out of jurisdiction".

3. **COMPLAINT STATISTICS**

Appendix A shows the number of complaints received per Ward for the current financial year compared to 2015/16. Appendix B details the compliments received by Section for the period 1 January 2016 to 30 June 2016. Appendix C details the complaints received by the District Council and EK Services for the period 1 January to 30 June 2016. Appendix D lists the Lessons Learnt from complaints from 1 January to 30 June 2016.

Background Papers

File C23/5 - Complaints.

Resource Implications

None.

Impact on Corporate Objectives

An effective complaints system supports the delivery of the Council's corporate objectives set out within the Corporate Plan 2008-2020.

Comment from the Solicitor to the Council

The Solicitor to the Council has been consulted in the preparation of this report and has no further comments to make.

Attachments

Appendix A - Ward Statistics

Appendix B - Breakdown of compliments by Section

Appendix C - Breakdown of complaints by Section

Appendix D - Actions Taken/Procedural Changes as a result of complaints received

SUE CARR

Corporate Complaints & Resilience Officer

The officer to whom reference should be made concerning inspection of the background papers is the Corporate Complaints & Resilience Officer, White Cliffs Business Park, Dover, Kent CT16 3PJ. Telephone: (01304) 872322.

Number of Complaints Received Per Ward and processed through the Complaints System

	No of Complaints		
Ward	1.4.15 to 31.3.16	1.4.16 to 30.6.16	
	DDC	DDC	
Aylesham	4		
Buckland	5		
Capel-le-Ferne	3		
Castle	10	2	
Eastry	3	1	
Eythorne & Shepherdswell	2	1	
Little Stour & Ashstone	9		
Lydden & Temple Ewell	1		
Maxton, Elms Vale & Priory	5	1	
Middle Deal & Sholden	6	1	
Mill Hill	6	3	
North Deal	8	1	
Outside District or N/A	7		
Ringwould	2		
River	4		
Sandwich	3	2	
St Margaret's-at-Cliffe	3	1	
St Radigunds	4	1	
Tower Hamlets	4		
Town & Pier	-		
Unknown	9	5	
Walmer	3		
Whitfield	5		
Total	106	19	

Details of Compliments Received Per Section From 1 January 2016 – 30 June 2016

Section	Compliment	
Building Control	Appreciation for a particularly high level of service – speedy response, attention to detail and sympathetic handling of the case	
Communication & Engagement	Thank you for "Parade in the Park" – the children thoroughly enjoyed it	
Communication & Engagement	Thank you for continued support and diligently promoting events in Sandwich	
Property Services	Thank you for maintenance and repairs carried out in Charlton Cemetery	
Property Services	Thank you for new street name plate which the contractor has positioned beautifully	
Property Services	Fantastic new facilities at Walmer Paddling Pool	
Waste Services	Thank you for removal of the rubbish from the verges on the A2	
Waste Services	Thanks to Veolia for emptying household waste bins despite the difficulty as a consequence of parked cars	
Waste Services	Excellent job of clearing leaves and debris from a path	
Waste Services	Thank you to the contractors who cleared an additional area at the request of a resident	
Waste Services	Thank you to the officer who gave up their Saturday to give a talk on waste and recycling	
Waste Services	Excellent, polite response and officer was very quick to visit	
Waste Services	Thank you for removal of fly-tipping "You may just be doing your job but thank you for doing it and the results don't go unnoticed"	

Appendix C

Complaints by Section from 1 January 2016to 30 June 2016

Complaint Type	Reason for Complaint	Number
Building Control - DDC	No Response	1
Council Tax - EKS	Administration	5
Council Tax - EKS	Recovery	7
Council Tax - EKS	Billing	1
Customer Services - EKS	Telephone Service	2
Customer Services - EKS	Staff attitude	1
Environmental Protection - DDC	Action taken by Officer	1
Planning enforcement - DDC	Merits of decision	1
Development Control - DDC	Administration	3
Development Control - DDC	Merits of decision	2
Governance - DDC	Merits of decision	2
Housing benefits - EKS	Overpayment	1
Housing benefits - EKS	Recovery	1
Housing Needs - DDC	Response from officer	1
Horticulture - DDC	Merits of decision	1
NNDR - EKS	Recovery	1
Parking Services - DDC	Action taken by Officer	2
Parking Services - DDC	Merits of decision	3
Parking Services - DDC	Administration	3
Waste Services - DDC	Missed collection	2
Waste Services - DDC	Recycling contamination	1

APPENDIX D

Actions Taken and/or Procedural Changes as a result of Complaints received between 1 January 2016 and 30 June 2016

Section	Complaint	Actions Taken/Procedural Changes
Events – DDC	Procedures relating to a traffic regulation order for a cycle track	Officers now aware of the status of the cycle track and the correct legislation will be used for any future closures.
Council Tax – EKS	Lack of response from Council Tax regarding a direct debit	Automated acknowledgement emails to be introduced.
Property Services / Accountancy – DDC	Incorrect refund form sent to resident	Form to be held on the intranet so that staff always have access to the current version.